
CITY OF HANOVER 
JOINT MEETING OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
MAY 23, 2016 

 
 
CHAIR           BOARD MEMBERS   
STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL 
        MICHAEL CHRISTENSON 
COUNCIL LIAISON     MICHELLE ARMSTRONG 
DOUG HAMMERSENG       DEAN KUITUNEN 
 
MAYOR       COUNCIL MEMBERS 
CHRIS KAUFFMAN     JOHN VAJDA 
        KEN WARPULA 
        JIM ZAJICEK 
        DOUG HAMMERSENG 
         
 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Approval of Minutes from March 28, 2016, Regular Meeting 

 
4. Citizen’s Forum 

 
5. Public Hearings 
 
6. Unfinished Business 
 
7. New Business 

a. Consideration of Amendments to the Performance Standards for Construction 
of Single Family Dwellings 

 
8. Reports and Announcements 

a. Planning Commission Reports 
b. Liaison Report 
c. Staff Reports 

 
9. Adjournment 
 
 



CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISION MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2016 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
Stan Kolasa called the March 28, 2016, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  Members 
present were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Michelle Armstrong, Dean Kuitunen, and Mike Christenson.  Also 
present were Council Liaison Doug Hammerseng, City Planner Cindy Nash, and Administrative Assistant 
Amy Biren.  Also present:  David Phillips, Mike Straub, Bob and Kay Kane, and Lynnae Karsten. 
Absent:  City Engineer Justin Messner. 
 
Oath of Office 
Jim Schendel took the Oath of Office with Biren acting as the witness for the City. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Armstrong to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Kuitunen.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Approval of Minutes from the February 22, 2016, Regular Meeting 
MOTION by Armstrong to approve the February 22, 2016, minutes as presented, seconded by Kuitunen.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum 
 None. 
 
Public Hearing 
 Amendment to Conditional Use Permit for Outdoor Storage at 11103 River Road NE 
Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:03 pm.  Nash reviewed 
the amendment that was being requested to an existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and recommended 
that it be tabled and additional materials be submitted as the property is located in the Shoreland 
Management Overlay.  The additional items to be submitted included a survey by a licensed surveyor and 
a more detailed site plan.  The survey would need to include boundary lines; the existing building; the 
existing parking area; the existing trees including type and size; the ordinary high water level of the Crow 
River; two-foot contours; and the impervious surface calculations.  The site plan would need to go into 
further detail showing the specific improvements including parking for employees and customers and the 
impervious surface calculations. 
 
David Phillips, the architect of the submitted plans, addressed the Commission:  Mike Straub, the owner of 
Rhino Imported Auto Parts, also known as Hanover European Auto Parts, is requesting that he be able to 
create outdoor storage for some of the larger parts and to be able to have six (6) cars outside in addition to 
the tow truck and forklift.  The cars are ones that are waiting to be disassembled inside of the building.  He 
is willing to have a fence in order to screen the cars from view or to leave it open to view in order for 
compliance checks to be easier.  He is willing to have a new survey prepared, but would like the number of 
cars to be decided tonight, so he would be asking to have the survey tabled and the storage of waiting cars 
to be decided tonight. 
 
Mike Straub, owner, spoke to the Commission as well.  He stated that over the past years, information and 
direction has changed with administrators and would like to have the mixed messages cleared up.  By 



establishing clarification of what can and cannot be done, he would be able to be compliant without 
worrying if changes would happen in the future.  At the time of the original Special Use Permit, people 
voiced concern about the property becoming full of cars and looking bad.  Straub stated that he has limited 
to the cars waiting disassembly to the gravel area. 
 
Commission members asked the following questions of Mike Straub (MS): 
 Christenson:  Will the tow truck and fork lift be part of the number of vehicles considered as part 
of the vehicles allowed outside? 
  MS:  No, this would be in addition to the six cars, so a total of eight (8) vehicles would be 
   outside. 
 Armstrong:  Why do you need space for cars outside? 
  MS:  Inside is area enough to disassemble two cars.  The cars outside are waiting to be  
   disassembled.  There is no more floor space available inside to put additional cars. 
 Kuitunen:  When the business first started, were all of the cars stored inside? 
  MS:  Yes, and I rented storage space at two different off-sites in the past. 
 Armstrong:  Do you have sufficient space right now without the off-site storage? 
  MS:  Yes, and I am thinking about the future and where I want to be in 10 years. 
 Armstrong:  What is the outdoor storage like? 
  MS:  The outdoor storage is behind the building and items are stored on racks.  It is a grassy 
   area with trees overhanging it. 
 Armstrong:  What about the stuff by the front doors? 
  MS:  That will be gone soon.  It goes to a recycler.  Parts that cannot be sold, but can be  
   recycled go into the frame and then off to the recycler.  Sometimes people drop  
   stuff off when he is closed and he has to dispose of it through the recycler. 
 Christenson:  So you are using the back area for storage currently? 
  MS:  Yes, I had been told by previous administrations that if it was out of site and no one  
   complained, it would be okay. 
 Armstrong:  Have you had more vehicles outside than what is currently there? 
  MS:  Yes, I have had up to 20 vehicles.  Right now there are 8-9 plus the forklift and tow  
   truck. 
 
Christenson asked Nash about the length of time that a CUP runs.  Nash explained that a CUP runs with 
the property and that if the property were sold, the next owner could use the CUP.  She said that for a limited 
use permit that would be an Interim Use Permit and would expire within a time frame or with the transfer 
of ownership. 
 
Kuitunen asked Straub if grading would need to be done in the back of the property for the storage and 
Straub replied “no”. 
 
Hammerseng asked Nash about the details of the initial CUP.  Nash said that the original was actually a 
Special Use Permit (SUP), which now is handled as a CUP, and that it was written in a manner typical of 
the time and the terms are vague.  By defining the conditions of the CUP within this amendment that would 
give clarity to both Straub and the City. 
 
Straub commented that he has received letters in the past as well as mixed messages.  He has been here for 
many years and has tried to be a good citizen.  He has not had fire calls or police calls to the property and 
he does his best to keep hazardous waste contained and follows the rules by the EPA.  He does this to 
protect his property. 
 
Phillips stated that they are willing to get the survey, but that it would have to wait until the May meeting 
as surveyors are very busy right now.  Nash confirmed this. 



 
Phillips said that he and Straub were given the impression that the City wants the number of cars to be zero 
(0) as that was what the CUP states.  Straub said that in his discussion with Brian Hagen, City Administrator, 
they talked about previous administrators and Hagen was going to follow the directives in the CUP and 
suggested that Straub apply for an amendment.  This was after a letter was sent in November 2015 asking 
Straub to bring his property into compliance by December 31, 2015. 
 
Armstrong asked that if the amendment was tabled, how would enforcement be handled?  Nash said that 
typically, enforcement goes on hold.  She also said that shoreland management comes into play on this 
property and tabling the amendment would allow further research. 
 
Armstrong asked Straub to speak to the sliding gate that was on the architectural drawing.  Phillips replied 
that the sliding gate would act as screening. 
 
Hammerseng stated that it sounded like the City and Straub both have similar goals regarding this situation.  
He went on to say that if people are dropping off things, there must be something that is causing them to 
do this.  Hammerseng suggested that Straub take some action now during the interim to show his willingness 
to work toward a common goal.  Straub replied that since receiving the letter in November, he has not 
brought any more cars in to disassemble and that he has been working on the cars there to get them 
completed and recycled.  Straub also stated that since the frost is gone and winter over, he will be able to 
get rid of some of the larger parts.  He does not intend to bring anything else onto the property until this 
amendment has been decided.  He said that he had been told by Hagen not to put cars behind the building 
and wouldn’t want to anyway since it is dirt and not gravel like the driveway. 
 
Kuitunen asked Nash if at the time of the SUP did the zoning B-1 (Downtown River Commercial District) 
allow for outdoor storage.  Nash replied that at the time, outdoor storage was not allowed. 
 
Lynnae Karsten expressed concern with the proximity of the business and outdoor storage so close to the 
Crow River.  Nash said that was another reason she requested tabling the matter in order to have a survey 
showing the ordinary high water mark of the Crow River and to see how it applied to shoreland 
management. 
 
Kolasa asked to see the site via Pictometry in Beacon (the Wright County Interactive GIS Map).  The site 
was brought up and projected on the screens.  Kolasa wanted to see the storage area and where the cars 
were located in a more current picture. 
 
Hammerseng asked about the current parking lot.  Straub said that he shares it with Bob Pink. 
 
Commission members asked Straub about the growth of the business and if he felt the need for additional 
off-site storage.  Straub said that he does not want or need additional off-site storage and that he is trying 
to cut back on the number of cars he disassembles as his inventory is good.  He specializes in collector cars 
and the older parts are now increasing in value. 
 
Armstrong asked if Straub had ever thought about moving to a bigger building.  Straub answered yes, and 
that the City had approached him years ago about a possible land swap.  It didn’t seem to go anywhere.  
Armstrong asked if he would still be open to that and Straub replied yes as long as it actually was discussed 
and would lead to it taking place. 
 
Kuitunen said that as close to the Crow River and with MS4 in place, there really isn’t an option not to do 
a new survey.  Nash replied that was so. 
 



Schendel asked about a time frame for tabling the amendment.  Nash said that an extension could be 
requested for another 60 days and the May meeting would fall well within that extension.  Phillips said that 
would agreeable as long as there was access to the planner during that time. 
 
Karsten asked if Wright County would need to be involved and if wetlands are involved.  Nash said that a 
river is not necessarily a wetland, but that would be determined with a new survey and that Wright County 
would be part of the research. 
 
Kolasa closed the Public Hearing at 7:48 pm and reopened the Planning Commission meeting. 
 
MOTION: 
Schendel moved to table the amendment as suggested by Planner Nash to the May meeting in order for the 
suggested materials to be submitted and for Nash to request an extension, seconded by Christenson.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Public Hearing 
 Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Chapter 10 Related to Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 
System (MS4) and Impervious Surfaces 
 
Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:50 pm.  Nash reviewed 
the changes suggested by WSB as the City Engineer was ill.  Nash made mention that as it was located in 
a different section staff and citizens need to be aware of its location.  The changes are standard language 
used when incorporating MS4 into a city. 
 
Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and reopened the Planning Commission meeting at 7:55 pm. 
 
MOTION: 
Kuitunen moved to recommend the adoption of the amendments related to MS4 and Impervious Surface 
into Chapter 10 of the Zoning Ordinance, seconded by Armstrong.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Unfinished Business 
Biren stated that the property that was out of compliance regarding signage was now in compliance and 
that the owners had worked within the time frame given. 
 
New Business 
None 
 
Reports and Announcements 
Planning Commission: 
Schendel asked about the soil borings on the 10 Acres and Hammerseng said that they had been done, but 
that results were not yet received.  Schendel suggested an alternate use of the property with allowing fill to 
be dumped there for a fee and then create a park or move the current shelter over to that site allowing the 
Public Works building to be built near the current location of City Hall.  He asked that this suggestion be 
conveyed to Council.   
 
Christenson asked about the condition of 15th Street.  Biren explained the use of gravel trucks and the mines 
located at the east end of the road.  She also said that Public Works keeps an eye on this street making 
repairs as needed.  Christensen also asked about the style of housing being constructed in Schendel’s Field.  
Biren said that the design standards had been changed since the early to mid-2000s and that all of the houses 
had been review by the City prior to permit. 
 



Council Liaison: 
Hammerseng asked about the signal work being done on CSAH 19 this week in Hanover.  Biren said that 
the County was going to be working on the signal and improving the timing of the new yellow flashing 
arrow. 
 
Staff Reports: 
Biren reviewed what has been happening at City Hall over the past month.  The Historic Bridge decking is 
almost installed.  Public Works employees need to rent a mill and plane all of the boards to the same 
thickness prior to installation.  Road restrictions went in place earlier than last year and there have been 
three violations.  New construction of residential homes has been constant although permits issued have 
dropped due to road restrictions.  Potential home buyers have been calling with permit and property 
questions.  Septic inspections and compliance reports have been very active.  Biren and Public Works 
employees attended a MS4 workshop in Brainerd last week which was very informative.  The Minnesota 
Erosion Control Association and the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency gave the workshop. 
 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Schendel to adjourn, seconded by Armstrong.  Motion carried unanimously.   
Meeting adjourned at 8:21 pm. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Amy L. Biren 
Administrative Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA 
HANOVER SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL 

MAY 23, 2016 
 
MAYOR 
CHRIS KAUFFMAN 
 
COUNCIL 
JOHN VAJDA 
DOUG HAMMERSENG 
KEN WARPULA 
JIM ZAJICEK 
 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 6:45 p.m. 
 
2. Public Hearing – Adoption of Moratorium on the Issuance of Single Family Dwelling Building Permits 
 
3. Res No 05-23-16-68 – Authorizing & Directing the Study of Official Controls on Single Family 

Dwellings 
 
4. Ordinance 2016-03 – Establishing a Moratorium on Building Permits for Single Family Dwellings 
 
5. Adjournment 



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 6:45 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 23rd day of May, 2016.   
 
The following Council Members were present:   
 
The following Council Members were absent:    
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by ________ and seconded by __________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 05-23-16-68 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE STUDY OF 

POSSIBLE AMENDMENT OF THE CITY OF HANOVER’S OFFICIAL CONTROLS 
RELATING TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS 

 
WHEREAS, the City has a Zoning Ordinance containing performance standards relating to the 
construction of single family dwellings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the single family dwelling performance standards were changed in 2013; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it would be in the public interest to reconsider the 
changes that were made in 2013; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has responsibility for reviewing amendments to official 
controls within the City.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. The Planning Commission and staff are hereby directed and authorized to begin 

studying the City’s current official controls and plans that relate to single family 
dwelling performance standards, including but not limited to, the building 
standards for single family dwelling structures in the Zoning Ordinance to 
determine whether changes to the standards would be necessary or desirable in 
order to protect and promote the public health, safety and welfare in the City.  

 
2. The Planning Commission and City Staff are directed to consider and determine 

the most appropriate means of conducting the study, including the necessity and 
desirability of contracting with outside consultants or experts in order to assist in 
this process. 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:   
 
Opposed or abstained:   
 
Adopted by the city Council this 17th day of May, 2016 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 



 
 

  CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON  
BUILDING PERMITS FOR SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS 

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 462.355, subd. 4, the City Council has the authority to 
adopt an interim zoning ordinance, also known as a moratorium, while it is conducting studies 
and considering amendments to the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  
 
WHEREAS, the Council has adopted a resolution directing study of possible changes to 
performance standards for single family dwellings.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HANOVER, MINNESOTA 
DOES ORDAIN: 
 
SECTION ONE: PURPOSE AND INTENT 
 This ordinance is adopted for the purpose of placing a temporary moratorium on building 
permits for single family dwellings as authorized by Minn. Stat. § 462.355, subd. 4. 
 
SECTION TWO: DEFINITIONS 

The term single family “dwelling unit” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 
10.01 of the Hanover Zoning Ordinance.  
 
SECTION THREE: TEMPORARY RESTRICTIONS ON SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING 
BUILDING PERMITS  

For a period of _______, or such earlier time as the City Council determines by 
resolution the reasons for this Ordinance no longer exist, no application for a building permit for 
a single family dwelling will be accepted or approved by the City. 
 
SECTION FOUR: SCOPE 
 This ordinance shall apply to building permit applications made subsequent to the date 
hereof, as well as all pending applications that have not yet been approved by the City if they do 
not meet the minimum standards as follows: 
 

Minimum floor area (excluding garage) measured using the outside building dimensions 
shall be as follows: 
• Rambler     1,260 sq. ft. 
• 1-1/2 Story    1,092 sq. ft. 
• Split Foyer/Entry    1,248 sq. ft. 
• Split Level – 3 level minimum  1,248 sq. ft. 
• Two Story     1,040 sq. ft. 



 
 

SECTION FIVE: ENFOREMENT 
 The City of Hanover may enforce any provision of this Ordinance by any means 
authorized by City ordinances or State Law.  
 
SECTION SIX: SEVERABILITY  
 Every section, provision or part of this Interim Ordinance is declared severable from 
every other section, provision, or part thereof to the extent that if any section, provision, or part 
of this ordinance shall be held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not invalidate 
any other section, provision, or part thereof.  
 
SECTION SEVEN: EFFECTIVE DATE 
 The ordinance shall become effective on the date of its adoption.  
 
Passed by the Council this _____ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
 
  
 Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 

  
 
 

 

Brian Hagen, City Administrator  
 



Hanover Code of Ordinances Chapter 10 - Zoning Ordinance 

SEC. 10.26 RESIDENTIAL USE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS CHART 

LAND USES DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS AND PERFORMANCE 
STANDARDS 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS: 

Pcrfonnance R-A R-1 RI-A R-2 
Standard 

Minimum Lot Area 2.5 acres ( 1.5 20,000 sq. ft. Interior: Two Family 
buildable) 12,000 sq. ft Dwellings: 

Corner: I 5,000 sq. ft 

15,000 sq. ft. 

Multiple 
Family 
Dwellings: 
15,000 sq. ft 
plus 2,000 sq. 
ft for each 
dwelling unit in 
excess of two 
(2) 

Minimum Lot Width 200 feet 100 feet 80 feet Two Family 
Dwellings: 100 
feet 

Multiple 
Family 
Dwellings: 150 
feet with 15 
feet of 
separation 

Minimum Lot Depth 200 feet No current 150 feet 
regulation -
insert 
requirement 

Maximum Building 2.5 stories, or 2.5 stories, or 2.5 stories, or 2.5 stories, or 
Height (except 35 feet, 35 feet, 35 feet, 35 feet, 
church spires and whichever is whichever is whichever is whichever is 
chimneys) less less less less 

City of Hanover 10-52 Approved 7/2/20 13 

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight



Hanover Code of Ordinances Chapter 1 0 - Zoning Ordinance 

Perfonnance R-A R-1 Rl-A R-2 
Standard 

Front yard setback 50 feet 35 feet 30 feet 25 feet 

Side yard setback 20 feet 15 feet 10 feet 15 feet 

Side yard on Comer Same as front Same as front Same as front Same as front 
lot abutting Street yard setback yard setback yard setback yard setback 

Rear yard setback 35 feet 35 feet 30 feet 30 feet 

Arterial road setback 50 feet 50 feet 50 feet 50 feet 

Collector road 45 feet 45 feet 45 feet 45 feet 
setback 

Wetland setback 30 feet 30 feet 30 feet 30 feet 

Bluff setback (from 30 feet 30 feet 30 feet 30 feet 
top of bluff) 

GD and RD waters 75 feet 75 feet 75 feet 75 feet 
setback 

NE waters setback 200 feet 200 feet 200 feet 200 feet 

Impervious coverage 25% 25% 25% 30% 
in shoreland area 

Minimum garage 576 sq. ft. 576 sq. ft. 576 sq. ft. 
size 

SEC.10.27 NON-RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT USE CHART 

ALLOW ABLE LAND USES WITHIN NON-RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

The uses permitted or authorized with a conditional use pennit are listed below: 

P = Pennitted Use A= Accessory Use CUP =Conditional Use 
Blank space indicates Not Permitted 

Type of Land Use I Qualifier I B-1 I B-lA l B-2 I 1-1 I 1-2 I I-3 

City of Hanover 10-53 Approved 7 /2/20 J 3 

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight

amyb
Highlight






















	5-23-16 Agenda Packet Complete
	5-23-16 Agenda Draft
	UCHAIRU           UBOARD MEMBERSU
	STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL
	MICHAEL CHRISTENSON
	UCOUNCIL LIAISONU     MICHELLE ARMSTRONG
	DOUG HAMMERSENG       DEAN KUITUNEN
	UMAYORU       UCOUNCIL MEMBERS
	CHRIS KAUFFMAN     JOHN VAJDA
	KEN WARPULA
	JIM ZAJICEK
	DOUG HAMMERSENG


	3-28-16 Minutes - DRAFT
	05-23-16 Special Council Agenda
	ADPB078.tmp
	Ordinance No. 2016-03


	Current Ordinance
	2011 Ordinance

	10.53 Performance Standards

